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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Rackleff Building is located on the northwestern side of Middle
Street in Portland. It faces southeast toward Middle Street and is bounded
on the northeastern side by Church Street. The Woodman Block is adjacent
to it on the southwest; together they form an entire city block. The
Rackleff Building, 11ke its neighbors, is in the Second EyZire style.

Architect Qgg;gEBgézﬁgzgéPg designed the Rackleff Building. He also

designed the Woodman ck and the Thompson Block, on the other side of
the Rackleff Building. ' It was built in 1867. Like the Woodman Block, the
Rackleff Building is built of brick with freestone trim. It is almost a
parallelogram in shape; sixty feet wide across the front and one hundred
and fifteen feet along the sides. It is three stories high and has a
practically flat roof. 'Some features of the Rackleff Building are identi-
cal to those of the Woodman Block, but it is designed to be an individual
unit.

‘\The cast iron arcade of the first floor of the facade is identical
to that of the Woodman Block, only about one foot lower, causing the whole
facade of the Rackleff Building to be lower than that of the Woodman Block.
The arches support an entabulature used for store names. Recessed doors
approached by short flights of stairs, and full length windows alternate
in the seven bays of the arcade. On the second floor are three single
windows to either side of a central double window. Projecting brick col-
umns which continue up to the roof frame this double window, creating a
central bay. There are similar columns at either end of the facade. At
the corner of the building on the right, the facade wraps around to the
side forming a rounded version of the center bay. The second floor win-
dows have freestone sills and freestone arches which are, connected by a
freestone stringcourse. On the third floor are three windows to either
side of an identical window in the center bay. The freestone erches are
connected by a stringcourse. The sills are also connected by a strlngcourse
which joins with the third floor stringcourse of the adJacent Woodman
Block. Just below this stringcourse is another one; the two frame, a
plaque which says "Rackleff'". The projecting wooden cornice is capped by
pairs of freestone brackets above the columns on the facade. Between the
brackets are a band of elongated freestone hexagons and a band of carved
freestone quatrefoils. No roof shows above the cornice today. Originally
there was an arched window above the center bay.\\

The Church Street (northeastern) side of the Rackleff Building is
simpler than the facade. The windows of the second and third floors have
freestone arches and sills like those on the facade but none
by stringcourses. Only a narrow freestone stringcourse rung
sills of the third floor windows. Sunken arched panels ,/‘
the first floor look like an arcade. Arched windows and £2)
nate in the bays. The overhanging cornice continues alo
has only periodic pairs of brackets. In the center of t
nice forms a gable. The gable has a round window in it .1u\
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7. DESCRIPTION
shield with "H" carved on it, no doubt for Harding.

The same simplified cornice continues across the rear of the building.

On the second and third floors are six windows, divided into groups of

three on either side. On the first floor are various arched window and

door openings; none have freestone trim. All the windows on the rear had
solid wooden shutters, like those currently on the Woodman Block, which

are now missing. Originally there were other buildings to the rear of the
Rackleff Building separated from it by a passageway parallel to Middle Street.
There are none today.

The freestone of the Rackleff Building has been painted. The original
six-over-six windows of the upper floors remain; some of the four light
windows on the first floor have been replaced. The building looks very
much as it did originally. It is still used commercially.

RECENEE
JAN:Z3 EﬂB \"“

| NATIONAL /tf
Zh. REGISTER A

GPO 921.724



INSTRUCTIONS

SEE

PERIOD (Check One or More as Appropriate)
] Pre-Columbian| ] 16th Century (] 18th Century [] 20th Century
[} 15th Century [ 17th Century K] 19th Century

SPECIFIC DATE(S) (If Applicable and Known) 1867

AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE (Check One or More as Appropriate)
[X] Urban Planning

Abor iginal [] Education (1 Political
[ Prehistoric [ Engineering [] Religion/Phi. [} Other (Specify)
] Historic [ !Industry losophy

[T} Agriculture ] Invention [7] Science

X1 Architecture 3 Londscape [C] Sculpture

[ Art Architecture 7] Social/Human-

1 Commerce [ Literature itarian

[ Communications 3 Military [] Theater

[C] Conservation [ Music 7] Transportation

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

George M. Harding practiced architecture in Portland for only a
short period. He began a private architectural practice in Boston in
1853. By 1856 he left Boston, probably for New Hampshire as there are
buildings by him in .Concord and Manchester. In 1858, he arrived in
Portland. Harding designed Portland High School, built on Cumberland
Avenue in 1863-64 "(now incorporated in the present school) and the First
Universalist Church on High Street in 1865 (now destroyed). After the
Great Fire of 1866, Harding played a major role in rebuilding the business
district.

The Rackleff Building completes the city block on which the Wood-
man Block stands. -It solves the problem of how to maintain continuity
along the street without outdoing or diluting the Woodman Block. The
Rackleff Building is a simple dignified building. It forms a good
transition between the more ornate Woodman and Thompson Blocks.

These three buildings together, the Woodman Block, the Rackleff
Building ‘and the Thompson Block, are the most high style Victorian
commercial grouping ever built in Maine. They are part of the Victorian
commercial district, an area rebuilt during the 1860's and 1870's after
the Great Fire, which was and is becoming agaln today the heart of
Portland. The Victorian buildings remainlng in the Exchange Market and
Middle Street area, together with Portland's handsome government build-
ings, form an architecturally rich district within the city.
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